
Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
1 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

The Meeting of the Board of Public Works of the City of Onalaska was called to order at 6:30 1 
p.m. on Tuesday, November 5, 2019.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and a 2 
notice posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Mayor Joe Chilsen, Ald. Diane Wulf, 5 
Ald. Kim Smith, City Engineer Jarrod Holter, Financial Services Director/Treasurer Fred 6 
Buehler 7 
 8 
Also Present:  City Administrator Eric Rindfleisch, Assistant City Engineer Kevin Schubert, 9 
Parks and Recreation Director Dan Wick, Police Chief Charles Ashbeck, Fire Chief Billy Hayes, 10 
Assistant Police Chief Troy Miller, Buildings Manager Brian Babiash, Ald. Dan Stevens, Ald. 11 
Boondi Iyer, Ald. Tom Smith 12 
 13 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from previous meeting 14 
 15 
Motion by Ald. Wulf, second by Jarrod, to approve the minutes from the previous meeting as 16 
printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 17 
 18 
On voice vote, motion carried. 19 
 20 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 21 
 22 
Ald. K. Smith called for anyone wishing to provide public input. 23 
 24 
Susan Schoenberger 25 
1809 Putter Court 26 
Onalaska 27 
 28 
“My husband, Dick, and I have lived at 1809 Putter Court since 1980, and we and others have 29 
never had trouble getting in or out of Putter Court.  Then two years ago, a home was built on the 30 
vacant lot at the southeast to Putter Court.  This new home houses seven adults and their 31 
vehicles.  With their vehicles parked on the road, our substandard width road is now reduced 32 
from a two-lane access road to one lane, resulting in numerous bottlenecks for all traffic 33 
throughout the year.  For example, on several occasions the snowplow was forced to back out 34 
and return later to clear the road.  If the snowplow can’t access our road, neither can fire trucks 35 
or First Responders or other emergency vehicles that will likely experience similar problems.  36 
This is especially concerning to us as my husband has cardiac problems, which required 37 
emergency vehicles to respond on several occasions.  We should have unhindered, year-round 38 
emergency vehicle access to Putter Court, and this proposal supports that.  The other residents of 39 
Putter Court who I have spoken to all support this proposal, and I have signatures on my original 40 
proposal so that you can see that support.  I will read the proposal; I wrote to Jarrod.  It says, 41 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
2 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

‘Thank you for giving me time this afternoon to discuss safe parking issues of concern 42 
[regarding] Putter Court.  My husband and I would like you to put forward to the Board of 43 
Public Works a no-parking proposal which would disallow parking on the north side of Putter 44 
Court for the first 225 feet, which is the narrowest part of Putter Court, and is less than the 45 
standard width of roads in Onalaska, or until the courtyard widens to make parking on both 46 
sides of the street safe.’  Thank you.”  Susan asked board members if they have questions. 47 
 48 
Ald. K. Smith told Susan that the board members will call on her if they have any questions 49 
when that item comes under discussion, and she also asked Susan if she wished to submit her 50 
letter to the board. 51 
 52 
Susan gave Jarrod a copy of her letter. 53 
 54 
Wade Turner 55 
1833 Putter Court 56 
Onalaska 57 
 58 
“I’ve lived there for approximately 2½ decades, and I’m standing here tonight relieved that after 59 
having raised now three adult sons, I don’t have to have them face the precarious and dangerous 60 
situation that’s out there on the street.  In the interest of time, let me just suggest to you that I and 61 
my wife who lives with me there wholeheartedly support this proposal put forth by Mrs. 62 
Schoenberger tonight, 100 percent.  Thanks for your time.” 63 
 64 
Patrick Clements 65 
3009 Wild Rose Lane 66 
Onalaska 67 
 68 
“I just want to come today to say two things.  One, to our Public Works heroes who were out 69 
there this afternoon making our streets safe before Snowmageddon [happens], we wake up in the 70 
morning and things just work, and that’s [because of] the heroes that make this place work called 71 
Public Works, so my hat is off to them.  And I stand in front of you as the President of Centering 72 
Onalaska to support Item 24 of the Capital Projects.  We thank the work behind that with the 73 
committee, and we stand in support of that money to replace the wreaths or to enhance the 74 
wreaths, which enhances our city.  Thank you.” 75 
 76 
Ald. K. Smith called three times for anyone else wishing to provide public input and closed that 77 
portion of the meeting.  Ald. K. Smith said the board would next address Item 5. 78 
 79 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 80 
 81 
 82 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
3 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

Item 5 – Review and consideration of parking restrictions along Putter Court 83 
 84 
Jarrod told board members both Susan Schoenberger and Wade Turner had contacted the 85 
Engineering Department regarding parking along Putter Court.  Jarrod said this area had been 86 
paved in the mid- to late-1980s when it was annexed into the City of Onalaska, and the road had 87 
deteriorated to the point where the city had added this street to its Capital Improvements paving 88 
projects.  Jarrod said he believes the project showed there are parking challenges along Putter 89 
Court, and he told board members their packets include a map of Putter Court and the seven 90 
residences that abut it, as well as a photograph Kevin had taken in late October showing two 91 
vehicles parked along Putter Court as motorists enter it off Green Coulee Road.  The road 92 
measures 27 feet, which is less than that of the average city street; it was installed without curb 93 
and gutter; and it was repaved earlier this year.  The road narrows when there are automobiles 94 
are parked on both sides, and Jarrod acknowledged that snowplows face difficulties entering and 95 
exiting this area if there is parking on both sides. 96 
 97 
Ald. K. Smith asked how snow removal would be handled if the city instituted no parking on one 98 
side of the street. 99 
 100 
Jarrod said the city typically has not enforced alternate-side parking during the winter when no 101 
parking is instituted on one side of the street.  Jarrod said the Street Department does not plow 102 
this area immediately and told Ald. K. Smith, “The width of this street, with one car, we would 103 
be able to get the snowplow by, and you should be able to get two cars to pass even in the 104 
wintertime.” 105 
 106 
Ald. Wulf asked Jarrod if he would concur with the citizens regarding installing no parking on 107 
the north side of Putter Court. 108 
 109 
Jarrod said he would and told Ald. Wulf, “Either side would get the parking for the access.  If the 110 
residents had the opinion they’d rather see [no parking] on the north side, I wouldn’t have a 111 
problem with that.” 112 
 113 
Ald. Wulf asked Police Chief Ashbeck and Fire Chief Hayes if they would like to provide input 114 
on this item. 115 
 116 
Police Chief Ashbeck said he agrees it would be difficult for emergency vehicles to access this 117 
area. 118 
 119 
Fire Chief Hayes said the Fire Department would face challenges in this area. 120 
 121 
Jarrod said the city’s past practice regarding parking restrictions has been to invite all the 122 
residents in the neighborhood to the following Board of Public Works meeting so that they may 123 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
4 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

provide public input. 124 
 125 
Ald. K. Smith asked on which side of the streets the residents’ mailboxes are located. 126 
 127 
Jarrod said they are located on the north side of the street, also noting the majority of the 128 
driveways are located on the north and the west side of the cul-de-sac. 129 
 130 
Ald. K. Smith asked if the 225-foot parking restriction would go to the cul-de-sac. 131 
 132 
Jarrod said it would approximately to the second driveway. 133 
 134 
Fred asked Jarrod if he is asking that the board hold a public hearing at its December 3 meeting. 135 
 136 
Jarrod told Fred that has been the typical practice. 137 
 138 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Wulf, to hold a public hearing at the December 3 Board of 139 
Public Works meeting regarding installing no parking along the first 225 feet of the north side of 140 
Putter Court. 141 
 142 
Ald. K. Smith asked Kevin if he has any suggestions or comments based on his observations. 143 
 144 
Kevin said no. 145 
 146 
On voice vote, motion carried. 147 
 148 
Item 4 – Review and consideration of 2020 Capital Improvements Budget 149 
 150 

A. Review and consideration of projects to be included or deleted from proposed 2020 151 
Capital Improvements Budget 152 

 153 
Jarrod noted the board had begun with approximately $10 worth of projects at its October 1 154 
meeting and said that total had been reduced to $6,707,943. 155 
 156 
Fred told board members he had spoken with Brad Viegut of Robert W. Baird and said the city 157 
typically bonds for $3.5 to $3.6 million.  Fred said if the city chooses to proceed with, for 158 
example, a one-time purchase of a fire truck at a cost of $1.2 million, Brad does not believe 159 
Moody’s will raise concerns if the city enters the bond market and wishes to bond for $4.7 to 160 
$4.8 million in capital projects.  Fred told board members they still must reduce the 2020 CIB by 161 
$1.9 to $2 million. 162 
 163 
City Administrator Rindfleisch told board members Moody’s will see that the city is borrowing a 164 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
5 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

larger amount than normal and inquire about it.  City Administrator Rindfleisch noted $1.2 165 
million is the typical cost for an item such as a fire engine, and he suggested that the city not 166 
bond for more than it typically does for all the projects.  City Administrator Rindfleisch 167 
reiterated Fred’s point that Moody’s would approve of the city bonding for a larger amount for 168 
2020 because it is making a one-time purchase of a piece of crucial equipment.  The city still 169 
would have $3.5 to $3.6 in capital projects, and the fire apparatus truck would be its own 170 
purchase on top of the $3.5 to $3.6 million. 171 
 172 
Public Works Department 173 
 174 
Item No. 2 – Pavement maintenance ($300,000):  Fred noted there is funding remaining in the 175 
2017 Capital Projects, and he told board members Jarrod suggested utilizing $142,000 of “Less 176 
Amount Already Bonded” and subtracting it from the $300,000.  This means the city would 177 
borrow $158,000, and thus the board would delete $142,000 from Item No. 2. 178 
 179 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Wulf, to delete $142,000 from Item No. 2 – Pavement 180 
maintenance ($300,000) – in the 2020 CIB and utilize $142,000 from “Less Amount Already 181 
Bonded” in the 2017 Capital Projects. 182 
 183 
Fred explained that projects are assigned a resolution when the city enters the bond market.  If 184 
there are funds remaining from a prior year in, for example, the Street Department, they may be 185 
utilized for like projects.  Fred said both he and Jarrod believe this item is an ideal location in 186 
which to utilize the funds. 187 
 188 
Mayor Chilsen inquired about the amount the board still must delete from the 2020 CIB. 189 
 190 
Fred said the board still must delete approximately $1,907,000 if the city bonds for $3.6 million 191 
and purchases the fire truck at a cost of $1.2 million. 192 
 193 
Item No. 3 – Green Coulee intersection improvements at East Main St.:  Ald. K. Smith noted 194 
the board has committed to the schematic design for the project at a cost of $100,000, and the 195 
construction of a roundabout has been moved to 2021.  Ald. K. Smith said she does not believe 196 
further adjustments should be made to Item No. 3. 197 
 198 
Jarrod said a design proposal will come before the board December 3, and he told board 199 
members he believes the amount budgeted for the final design under Item No. 3(a)(3) can be 200 
reduced from $100,000 to $50,000. 201 
 202 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Wulf, to reduce Item No. 3(a)(3) – Final Design for the Green 203 
Coulee intersection improvements at East Main St. – from $100,000 to $50,000. 204 
 205 
On voice vote, motion carried. 206 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
6 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 207 
Fred addressed Item 3(a)(4), which is the construction of a roundabout as part of the Green 208 
Coulee intersection improvements at East Main St., and inquired about the amount needed for 209 
construction. 210 
 211 
Jarrod said the estimated cost is $1.3 million. 212 
 213 
Item No. 4b – Sand Lake Road reconstruction – Redwood St. to Riders Club Road 214 
construction ($217,000):  Jarrod told board members the city is committed to Item No. 21 215 
(SS/Crossing Meadows Drive at a cost of $630,000) because it has a contract with the State of 216 
Wisconsin.  Jarrod also noted the city has bonded for the majority of the Sanitary Sewer, Water, 217 
and Storm Sewer funding that is part of Item No. 17 (Street reconstruction – Sunset Vista 218 
Subdivision), and he told board members the general portion funding for this project will total 219 
$891,500 if the city completes the entire subdivision, which includes paving five different 220 
streets.  Jarrod said that while he has stated the city should be doing paving projects, he also 221 
referred to the city’s PASER rating and noted the city has taken steps forward.  Jarrod stated he 222 
believes the city’s streets are in “very good condition,” and he told board members that while the 223 
paving projects listed in their budgets – including the extension of Oak Avenue in the northern 224 
end of the city and Sand Lake Road – have merit, “the other ones rise above them to get those 225 
completed.” 226 
 227 
Ald. K. Smith said she believes the city has worked hard to get its streets to their current levels, 228 
and that the city will lose ground if it does not maintain those levels.  However, Ald. K. Smith 229 
also acknowledged that the board still must remove $2 million from the 2020 CIB. 230 
 231 
Jarrod said Item 4b includes the mill and overlay from the roundabout at Riders Club Road south 232 
to Redwood Street, noting this area has begun deteriorating quickly due in part to significant 233 
truck traffic.  Jarrod said, “This would give us time until that area developed in the future when a 234 
future street project would be done to install more access along the vacant lands along there.” 235 
 236 
Fred asked that the board return to this item later. 237 
 238 
Ald. K. Smith said the board also will return to Item No. 6 (Street paving – Pinecrest Lane, 239 
Valley Court, 13th Avenue South/$139,000). 240 
 241 
Jarrod said he believes some of the paving projects will have to be removed, including Item No. 242 
6. 243 
 244 
Motion by Ald. Wulf, second by Fred, to delete Item No. 6 – Street paving – Pinecrest Lane, 245 
Valley Court, 13th Avenue South ($139,000) – from the 2020 CIB. 246 
 247 
On voice vote, motion carried, 4-1 (Mayor Chilsen). 248 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
7 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 249 
Ald. Wulf said if possible, she would consider putting funds back in the 2020 CIB, especially for 250 
streets with low PASER ratings. 251 
 252 
Item No. 10 – Sand Lake Road street lighting – Rolling Oaks to CTH SN ($113,000):  Jarrod 253 
said this would extend the decorative lighting from the previous roundabout project in 2014.  254 
Jarrod said the owner of the apartment complex in that area told him there are elderly motorists 255 
in that area and has expressed concern for their safety.  Jarrod said that while he does not believe 256 
it will be difficult to leave this item in the budget, it would be possible to install standard city 257 
street lighting on a standard pole in the area owned by Riverland Energy Cooperative.  Four 258 
streetlights would be installed, and they would meet the standards for the lighting that would be 259 
installed on an arterial residential city street.  Jarrod said he believes the city could improve the 260 
lighting for safety for $15,000; however, it would not be decorative. 261 
 262 
Ald. Wulf noted the board had just deleted $139,000 for a paving project and is considering 263 
$113,000 for decorative lighting.  Ald. Wulf said, “I’m at the point where we’re looking at needs 264 
and not necessarily wants.  I’m going to speak in support of going more for more of the non-265 
decorative lighting for $15,000 versus $113,000.  That’s $98,000 in savings.” 266 
 267 
Fred asked if LED lighting would be utilized with decorative lighting. 268 
 269 
Jarrod said the fixture would be LED decorative and noted the lights along Sand Lake Road have 270 
been converted to LED. 271 
 272 
Fred noted the city would be responsible for maintaining the poles, whereas that would not be 273 
the case if Riverland installed them. 274 
 275 
Jarrod told Fred he is correct, noting the city would pay approximately $15 per month in 276 
maintenance and electricity costs at each light if Riverland installs the poles.  The decorative 277 
poles would be hooked into the city’s current system, the city would pay for the electricity costs, 278 
and Riverland would be responsible for the maintenance costs. 279 
 280 
Fred inquired about the cost of utilizing a traditional pole. 281 
 282 
Jarrod said having the Riverland pole would mean there would be a higher yearly budgetary 283 
impact.  However, Jarrod added it would be “very marginal.” 284 
 285 
Fred asked how much of the $113,000 would be deducted if the city utilized a traditional pole. 286 
 287 
Jarrod said he believes street lighting could be installed at a cost of $15,000. 288 
 289 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
8 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

Motion by Ald. Wulf, second by Mayor Chilsen, to reduce the amount of Item No. 10 – Sand 290 
Lake Road street lighting – Rolling Oaks to CTH SN – from $113,000 to $15,000 and install 291 
four pole lights in place of decorative lighting. 292 
 293 
On voice vote, motion carried. 294 
 295 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Wulf, to delete Item No. 14 – Street paving – 10th Avenue 296 
North from Monroe St. to Well St.; Pierce Street from 10th Avenue to 11th Avenue; Larch Ave., 297 
Monroe St. from 9th Avenue to the end ($199,000) – from the 2020 CIB. 298 
 299 
Ald. Wulf noted she had discussed the poor condition of 10th Avenue with her husband and said 300 
she is hesitant to delete this item.  However, Ald. Wulf said she will defer to Jarrod. 301 
 302 
City Administrator Rindfleisch noted the PASER rating of the section in question is 3.0, which 303 
he described as “not good,” and he also noted the PASER rating for the now-deleted Item No. 6 304 
is 2.5.  City Administrator Rindfleisch said that while he believes both projects need to be 305 
completed, Item No. 14 should be deleted because Item No. 6 was deleted. 306 
 307 
Mayor Chilsen said the city works hard at keeping its streets in good condition and expressed 308 
reluctance over removing funds for street projects. 309 
 310 
Ald. Wulf stated she agrees with Mayor Chilsen and said she will vote ‘no’ on removing Item 311 
No. 14 at this time.  Ald. Wulf also stated she will reconsider Item No. 6 and said the city must 312 
keep up with its paving. 313 
 314 
Fred said he concurs with both Mayor Chilsen and Ald. Wulf. 315 
 316 
On voice vote, motion failed, 4-1 (Jarrod). 317 
 318 
Item No. 15 – End loader (replace 1996 model) ($188,000):  Jarrod said one of Public Works’ 319 
two end loaders is approximately six years old, and the model he wishes to replace has reached 320 
the end of its lifespan.  Jarrod noted the board had approved bucket repairs and said the 1996 end 321 
loader would be utilized as a yard machine.  However, it no longer will be utilized for pavement 322 
tear-off.  Jarrod also noted the Public Works Department attempts to replace one piece of 323 
equipment every year, and he told board members the vehicles in the Public Works’ fleet 324 
typically last 15 to 20 years. 325 
 326 
Ald. Wulf asked Jarrod if this is Public Works’ one piece of equipment for the year. 327 
 328 
Jarrod said the end loader and a salt brine maker have been included in the proposed 2020 CIB. 329 
 330 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
9 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

Ald. Wulf asked Jarrod to prioritize between Item No. 14 and Item No. 15. 331 
 332 
Jarrod noted he had voted to remove Item No. 14. 333 
 334 
Ald. Wulf noted there is an $11,000 difference between the two items and asked Jarrod if he 335 
would favor the street paving that is part of Item No. 14 or the end loader. 336 
 337 
Jarrod said he would vote ‘no’ on removing the end loader. 338 
 339 
Fred asked Jarrod if he feels confident on the $188,000 price for an end loader. 340 
 341 
Jarrod said yes, noting he has obtained a quote from the current suppliers for that price.  Jarrod 342 
said that while the price would change if the city were to purchase a used unit, “I can’t bank on 343 
that at this time.” 344 
 345 
Fred asked Jarrod if he believes the trade-in value would be $5,000 or less. 346 
 347 
Jarrod said the old end loader would remain in the yard based on what the city would receive for 348 
it in a trade-in. 349 
 350 
Item No. 16 – Street paving – Oak Ave. North from Grove St. to Riders Club Road; Green 351 
Ridge Dr.; Westwood Dr. from Pine St. to 10th Ave. North; Grove St. from Cliffview Ave. 352 
to 10th Ave. North; Grove St. from Oak to Pine & Parkridge Pl. ($324,000):  Jarrod said this 353 
would be an extension of the paving that occurred earlier this year from Vilas Street north, and 354 
he told board members he believes this item should remain as there is significant “alligator 355 
cracking” in this area. 356 
 357 
Mayor Chilsen said he agrees with Jarrod, noting the PASER rating is 2.5. 358 
 359 
Ald. K. Smith noted the city is committed to completing Item No. 17 (Street reconstruction – 360 
Sunset Vista Subdivision) at a cost of $891,500. 361 
 362 
Item No. 19 – Salt brine maker ($76,500):  Jarrod said the city purchases salt brine from La 363 
Crosse County at a cost of approximately 28 cents a gallon, and he told board members the cost 364 
can be reduced to approximately 10 cents a gallon with the purchase of the salt brine maker.  The 365 
city also will control the creation of its salt brine.  Jarrod noted there is 10,000 gallons of tanks at 366 
the Public Works Facility, and he said he believes this will give the city the opportunity to utilize 367 
salt brine more frequently.  Jarrod noted La Crosse County makes salt brine for its state roads 368 
and county roads, and it also has a tanker truck that goes to Tomah.  As a result, there were 369 
instances last winter when the City of Onalaska could not obtain salt brine.   Jarrod said that over 370 
time, the city will benefit by having its own salt brine maker. 371 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
10 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 372 
Ald. K. Smith noted the board already had discussed Item No. 21 (SS/Crossing Meadows 373 
WisDOT project/$630,000), which must remain in the budget as the city has committed to it. 374 
 375 
Item No. 22 – Update City Stormwater Quality Management Plan ($47,000):  Jarrod said 376 
this would update the 2009 plan and include the modeling update.  The Wisconsin Department of 377 
Natural Resources audited the city’s stormwater earlier this year, but it has not yet given the city 378 
its report.  Jarrod said there are items in the stormwater system plan the city must address, and he 379 
told board members the cost must remain the same to ensure that the city is meeting the 380 
stormwater code. 381 
 382 
Fred asked Jarrod if this could be an item for which $47,000 from the Enterprise Fund could be 383 
utilized. 384 
 385 
Jarrod said yes and noted the city sets aside funds yearly for special projects. 386 
 387 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Wulf, to delete Item No. 22 – Update City Stormwater Quality 388 
Management Plan ($47,000) – from the 2020 CIB and utilize funds from the Enterprise Fund 389 
within the Stormwater Utility. 390 
 391 
City Administrator Rindfleisch noted the Storm Sewer Utility would be borrowing and not the 392 
General Fund, and he asked if it would not reduce the figure the city is attempting to achieve for 393 
total borrowing. 394 
 395 
Fred said, “We’re not using borrowing at all.  We’re going to be utilizing the Enterprise Funds so 396 
there is no borrowing.” 397 
 398 
On voice vote, motion carried. 399 
 400 
Item No. 23 – South Kinney Coulee lighting upgrades ($5,000):  Jarrod said these funds 401 
would be utilized to upgrade the cabinet for the city-controlled street lighting in this area.  There 402 
is rust on the bottom, but Jarrod said he believes this item could be addressed in another budget 403 
cycle. 404 
 405 
Motion by Ald. Wulf, second by Jarrod, to delete Item No. 23 – South Kinney Coulee lighting 406 
upgrades ($5,000) – from the 2020 CIB. 407 
 408 
On voice vote, motion carried. 409 
 410 
Item No. 24 – Replacement of wreaths & banners for downtown streetlights ($38,000):  411 
Jarrod noted city staff has been putting up the lighting for the last three years and said some 412 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
11 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

upgrades are necessary.  Jarrod noted Pat Clements had given him the $38,000 cost, which would 413 
replace all the lighting and banners.  Jarrod said he believes the lighting and the Christmas 414 
decorations must be upgraded at some point, but he suggested doing half for 2020 and 415 
considering budgeting more in the future. 416 
 417 
Mayor Chilsen said he believes the decorations are an important part of the city’s winter 418 
landscape, and he told board members he would approve of doing half if the city attempted to 419 
obtain the other half via the Arts Commission.  Mayor Chilsen, who is a member of the Arts 420 
Commission, expressed his desire to assist with these efforts. 421 
 422 
Jarrod asked Patrick if $19,000 would improve the current situation. 423 
 424 
Patrick noted the wreaths are between 16 and 17 years old and said it is becoming difficult to 425 
maintain them.  Patrick told board members Centering Onalaska is proud to maintain the 426 
decorations, and he said $19,000 will allow the organization to replace the ones that are beyond 427 
repair. 428 
 429 
Jarrod noted some of the decorations needed to be taken out of service this winter as they were 430 
beyond repair. 431 
 432 
Fred asked board members if they would be open to leaving the $38,000 in the CIB, having 433 
$19,000 – which might or might not come – in “Less Amount Other Sources,” and borrowing 434 
$19,000. 435 
 436 
Motion by Fred, second by Jarrod, to move $19,000 of the $38,000 budgeted for Item No. 24 – 437 
Replacement of wreaths & banners for downtown streetlights – in the 2020 CIB to “Less 438 
Amount Other Sources.” 439 
 440 
On voice vote, motion carried. 441 
 442 
Item No. 25 – Broham Investments Development – watermain along STH 35, sanitary 443 
sewer along city pool site (Annexation in process) ($244,000):  Jarrod said this property is 444 
bordered by Van Riper Park.  There would be a watermain extension along STH 35 to the site, 445 
and there would be future looping capabilities.  The sanitary sewer would be run in along the 446 
pool site. 447 
 448 
Ald. K. Smith asked if the annexation is contingent upon approval of this item. 449 
 450 
Jarrod said yes. 451 
 452 
Motion by Fred to delete Item No. 25 – Broham Investments Development – watermain along 453 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
12 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

STH 35, sanitary sewer along city pool site ($244,000) – from the 2020 CIB. 454 
 455 
Motion dies for lack of a second. 456 
 457 
Item No. 26 – 13th Avenue North cul-de-sac installation at Hilltopper Heights Park 458 
($20,000):  Jarrod noted there is no turnaround at the end and said this request had come out of a 459 
public hearing from a Board of Public Works meeting earlier this year. 460 
 461 
Ald. K. Smith stated her preference to keep this item in the 2020 CIB as there is a public safety 462 
concern, noting this is a dead-end street that abuts the park.  Ald. K. Smith also noted there are 463 
challenges related to snow removal and parking. 464 
 465 
Planning Department 466 
 467 
Item No. 28 – Urban forestry – general ($25,000), and Item No. 29 – Urban forestry – new 468 
tree installation ($50,000):  Jarrod said Item No. 28 facilitates the planting of trees in public 469 
right-of-ways when homeowners request them, and he noted this is a popular program.  Jarrod 470 
told board members the Emerald Ash Borer had had a negative effect on the city, noting it had 471 
lost approximately 30 percent of its urban right-of-way forest.  Jarrod said he believes Item No. 472 
28 should remain in the CIB and suggested the board discuss Item No. 29. 473 
 474 
Mayor Chilsen voiced his support for urban forestry, stating he believes it beautifies the city. 475 
 476 
Fire Department 477 
 478 
Item No. 34 – Ladder truck/aerial apparatus ($1,200,000):  Ald. K. Smith asked Fire Chief 479 
Hayes which surrounding communities have a similar ladder truck, and she said that while there 480 
are more multilevel residential complexes in the city that would benefit from such a vehicle, she 481 
also believes there are similar trucks in other local municipalities that could assist the City of 482 
Onalaska. 483 
 484 
Fire Chief Hayes told Ald. K. Smith he disagrees with her in terms of relying on other 485 
communities for assistance, noting there are staffing issues within the Village of Holmen, and 486 
that its Fire Department would not be en route to a site for 15 to 20 minutes if mutual aid were 487 
requested.  Fire Chief Hayes also noted that while the Village of West Salem had recently 488 
acquired new Quint apparatus, the village is located farther away from the City of Onalaska and 489 
would need additional time to reach a site.  Fire Chief Hayes noted the Fire Department’s current 490 
tower is approximately 15 years old, and he pointed out that it will be difficult for the current 491 
apparatus to reach many of the multifamily high-rises being constructed within the city.  Fire 492 
Chief Hayes told board members it will be difficult for a fire engine to access the Great River 493 
Residences, which currently are under construction, because space is tight.  Fire Chief Hayes 494 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
13 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

also noted there are two 80-unit high-rises being constructed along Abbey Road; a Holiday Inn 495 
that is under construction will be five stories; and there is a four-story, 128-unit senior living 496 
facility located off Emerald Drive. 497 
 498 
Fire Chief Hayes said, “As we all know, it is hard to build up on flat land, [so] we’re having to 499 
go upwards.  The older our current apparatus gets, the more likely it’s going to have mechanical 500 
issues, which puts that unit out of service.  Then we’re relying upon Holmen or West Salem or 501 
La Crosse to be able to get to us.  That puts us in a position where our response is going to be 502 
delayed, and I believe we need to be self-sufficient.  The one thing I would point out on this 503 
current apparatus is, all we did is receive quotes through competitive bidding.  You’re going to 504 
get a better price if you pay 100 percent up front for that apparatus.  You’re going to get a 505 
substantial discount.  This current apparatus includes cost estimates for hose, air packs – all the 506 
equipment we’re currently going to need – versus the last apparatus that was purchased.  They 507 
had to go back into the budget and pull money out to purchase that equipment.  This includes 508 
that.  We could look at selling Engine [No.] 3 for surplus.  We’re not going to get a lot of money 509 
for it, but it’s going to be an apparatus we won’t need.  The current apparatus in this budget that 510 
we’re proposing is a straight-stick ladder instead of the platform.  It is a single axle … you’ll 511 
have one [wheel on the back].  That makes it about the same size as our current engine, which 512 
makes it easier for us to maneuver around.  This is a purchase you’re going to make now and not 513 
have to do again for at least another 15 years.” 514 
 515 
Ald. Wulf referred to a service study in which the City of Onalaska is a participant and said a 516 
primary topic is having abutting municipalities participate together in making large purchases.  517 
Ald. Wulf said she had hoped the study would be released before she would be required to make 518 
a decision regarding the ladder truck. 519 
 520 
Fire Chief Hayes told Ald. Wulf both the Village of Holmen and the Village of West Salem had 521 
just purchased ladder trucks.  Fire Chief Hayes also said it is his understanding both the Town of 522 
Campbell and the Village of West Salem declined to participate in the shared service study. 523 
 524 
Jarrod noted the mechanic spends a significant amount of time working on the current aerial 525 
apparatus, which was purchased as a demo unit, and he said it often is out of service. 526 
 527 
Ald. Wulf said she believes the city ordered the current apparatus in 2003. 528 
 529 
Fire Chief Hayes said the new apparatus would not be delivered for 12 to 14 months if the city 530 
ordered it now, and he told board members a vendor had told him there would be a $30,000 to 531 
$40,000 increase on units ordered after January 31 due to the taxes on steel. 532 
 533 
Mayor Chilsen noted the current fire apparatus has experienced mechanical difficulties and 534 
frequently been out of service over the years. 535 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
14 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 536 
Fire Chief Hayes said he would be in favor of keeping the department’s current tower as a 537 
backup and told board members perhaps it could be sold in the future.  Fire Chief Hayes 538 
reiterated his belief that the City of Onalaska’s Fire Department needs to be self-sufficient and 539 
not rely on outlying communities, noting the City of La Crosse is the only municipality that can 540 
be contacted on a regular basis for mutual aid. 541 
 542 
Ald. Wulf asked if there a location in which the backup unit could be stored. 543 
 544 
Fire Chief Hayes said yes. 545 
 546 
City Administrator Rindfleisch noted the model of deployment in the City of La Crosse could be 547 
different, and he told board members he had seen a ladder truck respond to a call less than a 548 
block from the fire station located on Monitor Street.  City Administrator Rindfleisch said, “If 549 
we’re relying on them as our backup on that, they may have a call, and by the time they were 550 
done … that vehicle we’re relying on could be being used on a medical run versus waiting for us 551 
to use it.  It’s a totally different deployment model, from my understanding.” 552 
 553 
Fire Chief Hayes told board members the Quint unit the department is considering is similar to a 554 
fire engine, but has an aerial device on it.  Fire Chief Hayes said the City of La Crosse runs its 555 
Quint units like fire engines, and he told board members he would look at such a deployment 556 
model.  Fire Chief Hayes also noted a new Quint unit could be deployed much faster, meaning it 557 
would either be a first- or second-out apparatus, and he said the Fire Department would have 558 
everything it needs at once. 559 
 560 
City Administrator Rindfleisch said the unit would not sit and wait for calls that require a ladder 561 
and noted it would be utilized regularly. 562 
 563 
Ald. Wulf said the unit is a 95-foot ladder truck even though it is called a 100-foot ladder truck. 564 
 565 
Fire Chief Hayes told Ald. Wulf she is correct, and he noted space is lost due to the outriggers 566 
that come out of the apparatus that have to stabilize it.  Fire Chief Hayes noted the new 567 
construction in the city will require the apparatus to be farther away, and he said that will reduce 568 
the height level. 569 
 570 
Parks & Recreation Department 571 
 572 
Item No. 35 – Aquatic Center repairs – a. Activity pool ($145,888); b. Tile removal, joint 573 
repair & plaster ($55,710); c. Back of gutter repair ($9,345):  Dan told board members this is 574 
the first of any major repairs that will be performed at the Aquatic Center since it opened in 575 
2005. 576 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
15 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 577 
Ald. Wulf noted the Parks and Recreation Board supported this item and said the Aquatic Center 578 
benefits the City of Onalaska and generates revenue.  Ald. Wulf also stated her support for this 579 
item. 580 
 581 
Fred asked to return to Item No. 25 and told board members he would choose street repairs over 582 
something that may happen. 583 
 584 
Ald. K. Smith suggested that the board continue with the discussion and return to that item. 585 
 586 
Fred noted the board has deleted $500,000 thus far this evening. 587 
 588 
Item No. 37 – ADA improvements ($30,000):  Dan said some funding is necessary so that 589 
improvements may be made, and he told board members it will not be possible to do any projects 590 
that will help the city slowly start making improvements based on the situations and shortfalls 591 
that were identified in the ADA plan.  Dan noted the $30,000 will cover all facilities, parks, and 592 
everything the city has, and he said the budget originally designated funds for City Hall, the 593 
Omni Center, and city parks, but the Parks and Recreation Board had condensed the financial 594 
figure so that locations in the entire city could be examined. 595 
 596 
City Administrator Rindfleisch noted the ADA study had been conducted for liability purposes, 597 
and he told board members the city is liable if someone were to bring a case against the city, no 598 
study had been completed, and no funding is available for projects.  City Administrator 599 
Rindfleisch also noted the completed study had highlighted concerns regarding access in public 600 
facility buildings, and he said, “Beyond just a financial liability issue, I think having funding 601 
there does help create better access for the residents who need to access the public facilities.” 602 
 603 
Police Department 604 
 605 
Item No. 38 – Two squad cars ($117,250); Item No. 39 – Unmarked squad car ($55,000); 606 
and Item No. 40 – Portable radio replacement (1/3 yearly) ($24,000):  Jarrod noted squad car 607 
replacements typically have been funded out of the CIB, and he also noted there have been years 608 
in which squad cars either have been deleted from the CIB, or a reduced number of squad cars 609 
were approved.  Jarrod told board members the city’s mechanic becomes frustrated because the 610 
squad cars are consistently at the shop, and he said the squad cars have to be a priority as they 611 
are officers’ mode of transportation. 612 
 613 
Ald. K. Smith noted the board also must consider the theoretical potential addition of officers. 614 
 615 
Police Chief Ashbeck told board members the department is operating at a maximum of its patrol 616 
squads, noting that there will not be a squad car available for an officer if one goes down during 617 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
16 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

an overlap.  Police Chief Ashbeck told board members cutting the rotation of the new squad cars 618 
coming in means more down time for the current squad cars, and thus officers do not have a 619 
vehicle to utilize. 620 
 621 
Ald. Wulf inquired about the replacement cycle for squad cars and unmarked cars. 622 
 623 
Police Chief Ashbeck said he believes cars are replaced after 100,000 miles or 10 years, and he 624 
told Ald. Wulf the marked squad cars meet the 100,000-mile threshold before 10 years, and also 625 
that the unmarked squad car has passed the 10-year threshold.  Police Chief Ashbeck also noted 626 
the unmarked squad car was out of service for several days so that the rack and pinion could be 627 
replaced. 628 
 629 
Jarrod noted it takes a year for the new squad cars to arrive as they are ordered on state bid.  630 
Jarrod also noted costs have increased due to the amount of electronics in the vehicles, and he 631 
told board members it would take three months to switch over a squad car.  Jarrod said the 632 
vehicle costs include the switch over. 633 
 634 
Ald. K. Smith asked Police Chief Ashbeck if he anticipates that nothing will be able to be 635 
transferred from the old squad car to a new one. 636 
 637 
Police Chief Ashbeck told Ald. K. Smith that Ford Motor Company had created a redesign and 638 
said the Police Department will not be able to transfer some of the equipment for the next few 639 
cycles.  However, it has been built into the pricing for which the Police Department has 640 
budgeted, and there will be no additional costs.  Police Chief Ashbeck said that as the same style 641 
vehicle is swapped out, the Police Department attempts to transfer equipment from squad car to 642 
squad car.  Doing this is an attempt to reduce costs. 643 
 644 
Assistant Police Chief Miller told board members the department knew a year ago the body style 645 
for the squad cars would be changing.  Therefore, it became necessary to budget for new 646 
equipment.  To be specific, Assistant Police Chief Miller said the radios and radars will transfer 647 
over, but the cages, partitions, and some of the storage councils will need to be changed.  648 
Assistant Police Chief Miller also noted the storage space for the spare tire likely will incur more 649 
of a cost for the department because this is where the control heads used to be mounted for all of 650 
its equipment.  That space is no longer there, and the department now must consider other 651 
options.  Assistant Police Chief Miller said this causes a price increase, and he told board 652 
members the department is budgeted for most of the equipment being replaced because it will 653 
not transfer.  Assistant Police Chief Miller told board members this will be the likely scenario 654 
again for 2021, followed up by perhaps one or two squad cars.  Assistant Police Chief Miller also 655 
noted the department still is waiting for one of the squad cars that was ordered this past April.  656 
Assistant Police Chief Miller described the department’s cars as being “the most abused in the 657 
city,” and he said this is due to the nature of the business. 658 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
17 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 659 
Assistant Police Chief Miller said, “Once we get out of the cycle of this replacing, we kind of 660 
find ourselves in a hole trying to dig ourselves back out.  We have experienced that.  I don’t wish 661 
these decisions to be on anybody, and I’m glad I’m not in your spots because it’s going to be a 662 
tough decision to make.  But as far as the emergency services vehicles, these are our jobs.  If we 663 
don’t have these vehicles to respond, then you may as well not have us here.” 664 
 665 
Fred inquired about the portable radio replacement. 666 
 667 
Police Chief Ashbeck told Fred the Motorola portable radios have a life cycle and said the 668 
department originally had budgeted to replace all the radios.  However, Police Chief Ashbeck 669 
also noted he had told the board at its October 1 meeting the radios could be replaced over a 670 
three-year increment. 671 
 672 
Omni Center 673 
 674 
Item No. 41 – Rink No. 2 chiller ($485,000):  Jarrod noted the existing chiller is 12 years old 675 
and said it is experiencing technical difficulties.  However, Jarrod said he believes replacing the 676 
chiller will have to wait a year. 677 
 678 
City Administrator Rindfleisch noted the La Crosse County Board Executive Committee is 679 
meeting Wednesday and said it will consider adding $50,000 in its budget for a chiller in Rink 680 
No. 2.  City Administrator Rindfleisch said a motion on this item should not be to delete it, but 681 
rather to move it to the 2021 CIB program. 682 
 683 
Ald. Wulf noted whatever the board decides on this evening is not final until the public hearing, 684 
and she asked if the city would lose out on the $50,000 if Item No. 41 is removed from the 2020 685 
CIB.  Ald. Wulf also asked if the city needs to show it is committed to replacing the chiller. 686 
 687 
Ald. K. Smith said the city eventually will have to replace the chiller. 688 
 689 
City Administrator Rindfleisch suggested removing the chiller from 2020 CIB and moving it to 690 
the 2021 CIB, which he said he believes shows the city is committed to replacing it.  City 691 
Administrator Rindfleisch said removing the item means there will not be a portion of a project 692 
the La Crosse County Board Executive Committee is looking at funding. 693 
 694 
Ald. Wulf asked if this is the outdoor chiller. 695 
 696 
Dan said yes. 697 
 698 
Ald. Wulf asked if the chiller has a shorter lifespan because it is outside. 699 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
18 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 700 
Dan said yes and told Ald. Wulf it is running much longer.  Dan also noted the unit runs any time 701 
there is ice in Rink No. 2. 702 
 703 
Ald. Wulf asked who had submitted the quote for the chiller. 704 
 705 
Dan said the company that had provided the last chiller had submitted the quote.  Dan also noted 706 
the chiller in Rink No. 1 had been replaced either in 2016 or 2017. 707 
 708 
Brian Babiash told board members Minnesota Ice had done the work on the Arena No. 1 chiller, 709 
and he said its employees had looked into possibly combining the two.  Brian told board 710 
members Minnesota Ice likely would replace the outside unit and the pumps, with everything 711 
else remaining in place. 712 
 713 
Fred asked Jarrod if the projects that are removed from the 2020 CIB are moved to the 2021 714 
CIB. 715 
 716 
Jarrod said projects that are removed are moved forward to the next budget year, adding he 717 
believes City Administrator Rindfleisch is looking for a commitment from the board to move 718 
Item No. 41 to the 2021 CIB. 719 
 720 
City Administrator Rindfleisch asked that the record show that the board is looking at making a 721 
commitment to the project if La Crosse County funds $50,000 of the $485,000. 722 
 723 
Fred reiterated the board has removed $500,000 thus far from the 2020 CIB. 724 
 725 
Motion by Fred, second by Jarrod, to move Item No. 41 – Rink No. 2 chiller ($485,000) – from 726 
the 2020 CIB to the proposed 2021 CIB. 727 
 728 
On voice vote, motion carried. 729 
 730 
Item No. 43 – Omni Center generator ($280,000):  Dan noted the Omni Center is a shelter for 731 
several community projects, and also for the city.  However, there is no backup power at the 732 
facility. 733 
 734 
Fred asked Dan if he would object to Item No. 43 being removed. 735 
 736 
Dan told Fred he understands the board still must remove a significant amount of funding from 737 
the 2020 CIB. 738 
 739 
Ald. K. Smith said the board likely will need to remove paving projects if the generator is 740 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
19 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

removed. 741 
 742 
Motion by Fred, second by Jarrod, to delete Item No. 43 – Omni Center generator ($280,000) – 743 
from the 2020 CIB. 744 
 745 
Ald. Wulf noted the Omni Center generates revenue for the city and said, “I go between paving 746 
and a generator.  I’m going to flip and support paving before a generator, but it pains me because 747 
I think we’re shooting ourselves in the foot at the same time.” 748 
 749 
Ald. K. Smith said she does not think the generator would affect the revenue; however, the 750 
chiller would.  Ald. K. Smith asked if problems would arise if there was a need to shelter citizens 751 
in place in the event of an emergency. 752 
 753 
Jarrod told Ald. K. Smith the generator would supply power to the Omni Center and noted it also 754 
is part of the city’s Emergency Operations Plan.  Jarrod referred to Item No. 54 (City Hall roof 755 
replacement) and said he believes this item is a higher priority. 756 
 757 
On voice vote, motion carried. 758 
 759 
City Hall 760 
 761 
Item No. 54 – Roof replacement over entire building ($255,750):  Jarrod said a portion of this 762 
project – replacing the roof over the Common Council Chambers – was funded utilizing prior 763 
CIB funding.  Jarrod said it will be more efficient to replace the entire roof at one time, noting 764 
there are areas in the building where leaking occurs.  Jarrod said the roof that was installed when 765 
City Hall was constructed in 1999 was “middle of the road.” 766 
 767 
City Administrator Rindfleisch noted there are stained roof tiles and pans that catch leaks, and he 768 
said City Hall is the public’s building and the issues hampering it must be addressed. 769 
 770 
Item No. 55 – Second floor Administrative Office remodel – a. HVAC work ($15,000); b. 771 
Construction ($65,000):  Jarrod noted Human Resources and City Legal Counsel are located on 772 
the second floor. 773 
 774 
City Administrator Rindfleisch noted this line item was to make improvements to the suite.  775 
However, it became a second floor administrative office remodeling project, and City 776 
Administrator Rindfleisch noted it was a line item for City Hall maintenance upgrades.  City 777 
Administrator Rindfleisch said that for one year it would not include carpet; rather, it was for 778 
upstairs.  City Administrator Rindfleisch suggested changing this item back to “City Hall 779 
Maintenance and Upgrades” and reducing the amount either to $30,000 or $40,000 for all of City 780 
Hall.  City Administrator Rindfleisch also said it will be necessary to make do with the furniture 781 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
20 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

and office that is currently there.  Other improvements may be made by utilizing the remaining 782 
funding from other City Hall maintenance projects.  City Administrator Rindfleisch noted there 783 
are desks, chairs, and seats upstairs. 784 
 785 
Motion by Ald. Wulf, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve changing the wording of Item No. 786 
55 – Second floor Administrative Office remodel – to “City Hall Maintenance and Upgrades,” 787 
and to reduce the total budgeted amount of $80,000 for ‘a’ and ‘b’ to a flat amount of $30,000. 788 
 789 
On voice vote, motion carried. 790 
 791 
Item No. 56 – HVAC controls ($3,000):  Dan noted there are HVAC upgrades slated for the 792 
library, City Hall, and Public Works, and he said he believes the current systems are running on 793 
the oldest computer in the city.  Dan said, “It’s just trying to get all the controls that we can 794 
house in one area and make those improvements.” 795 
 796 
Ald. K. Smith asked Dan if he believes HVAC upgrades should be performed at the library, City 797 
Hall, and Public Works. 798 
 799 
Dan said yes. 800 
 801 
City Attorney 802 
 803 
Item No. 68 – Municipal Code/Ordinance recodification ($22,000):  City Administrator 804 
Rindfleisch told board members this already has begun in earnest with staff from the City 805 
Clerk’s Office and the City Attorney’s Office.  The intent is to clarify, item by item, each of the 806 
city’s ordinances and restructure how the city codifies what it is doing.  City Administrator 807 
Rindfleisch said the recodification also will make it easier for the public to access the ordinances 808 
that dictate their lives, and he noted it currently is difficult to perform searches and determine if 809 
one has obtained all the history.  City Administrator Rindfleisch noted the city’s current 810 
ordinance book is lengthy and said it must be edited as it currently is in a system that may not be 811 
utilized. 812 
 813 
City Administration 814 
 815 
Item No. 69 – Compensation study ($35,000):  Ald. Wulf said she believes it is imperative that 816 
this line item remain in the 2020 CIB, and she told board members that if it is approved she will 817 
strongly advocate for the study to be performed sooner rather than later in 2020. 818 
 819 
Ald. K. Smith said she not only is committed to completing this study in 2020, but she also is 820 
committed to setting aside funds in the regular budget to fund some of the changes that are found 821 
by the study. 822 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
21 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 823 
Fred noted the board has removed $1,315,000 this evening and said the goal is to remove $1.8 to 824 
$1.9 million. 825 
 826 
City Administrator Rindfleisch said by his calculations the board still must remove $592,000. 827 
 828 
Ald. K. Smith cited the following as items that possibly could be removed from the CIB: 829 
 830 

• Item No. 4 – Sand Lake Road reconstruction ($217,000) 831 
• Item No. 15 – End loader ($188,000) 832 
• Item No. 25 – Broham Investments Development ($244,000) 833 

 834 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Wulf, to delete Item No. 25 – Broham Investments 835 
Development – watermain along STH 35, sanitary sewer along city pool site ($244,000) – from 836 
the 2020 CIB. 837 
 838 
Jarrod told board members he looks at this project and the sanitary sewer portion of it as being 839 
beneficial to the Schuppel properties that are in the process of being annexed into the city.  840 
Jarrod also noted the watermain only will be utilized by the site until such time further 841 
development occurs.  Jarrod told board members developers perform the majority of the 842 
installations, and he noted it would be necessary to assess back much of this.  Jarrod said it is 843 
necessary to bond the funds and carry the costs until the assessments are paid. 844 
 845 
Aaron Wessel, Broham Investments, LLC 846 
9542 East 16 Frontage Road 847 
Onalaska 848 
 849 
“I might have a solution to this income.  You’re talking about carrying investments.  How about 850 
a reverse TIF where we pay for it up front and then we don’t pay any taxes on it until we 851 
accumulate that money?” 852 
 853 
Ald. K. Smith said it is not appropriate to discuss this at this time as the board is discussing the 854 
CIB, and she told Aaron he is welcome to contact staff and have further discussions about other 855 
options for the future.  Ald. K. Smith also told Aaron there are valuable, important projects 856 
before the board, and she said it is difficult to choose which ones to include in the 2020 CIB. 857 
 858 
City Administrator Rindfleisch noted there is a TIF application and said a challenge facing the 859 
city is that it must ensure the property is commercial and not residential, which he believes this 860 
property will qualify for.  City Administrator Rindfleisch said a PAYGO TIF would remove this 861 
item from the 2020 CIB, and he told board members, “We’re not eliminating that opportunity by 862 
removing it.” 863 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
22 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 864 
Aaron noted the property is currently located in the Town of Onalaska, and he told board 865 
members he is uncertain how much he may apply for. 866 
 867 
On voice vote, motion carried, 4-0. (Mayor Chilsen had temporarily left the Council Chambers). 868 
 869 
Fred noted the board has deleted $1,559,000 this evening, and that the 2020 CIB currently sits at 870 
$5,148,943.  That total will be reduced to $3,948,943 if the ladder truck/aerial apparatus is 871 
removed.  Fred said, “I personally feel with the interest rates where they are with the rates of 872 
borrowing, we can move it to public hearing.  If we can show that the interest dollars with the 873 
rates you’re receiving do the projects that we can do and not be influence negatively by 874 
Moody’s, I think the city should consider it.” 875 
 876 
Ald. Wulf addressed Jarrod and said it is her understanding that he favors keeping Item No. 4 877 
(Sand Lake Road reconstruction – Redwood St. to Riders Club Road) over Item No. 6 (Street 878 
paving – Pinecrest Lane, Valley Court, 13th Avenue South) due to the heavy volume of traffic. 879 
 880 
Jarrod compared Item No. 4 to East Main Street, noting it had quickly deteriorated over a year’s 881 
time and telling Ald. Wulf that Sand Lake Road will deteriorate much faster in comparison to a 882 
side residential street. 883 
  884 

B. Set date/time of public hearing on Capital Improvements Budget 885 
 886 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Wulf, to set the public hearing for the Capital Improvements 887 
Budget for 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, December 3, 2019. 888 
 889 
On voice vote, motion carried. 890 
 891 
Ald. K. Smith noted the board will pause for approximately five minutes. 892 
 893 
Item 6 – Review and consideration of 2019 final special assessment costs 894 
 895 
Jarrod said this is the final special assessments costs ($8.73 per lineal foot) for the alley project 896 
that was completed north of Main Street. 897 
 898 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Fred, to approve 2019 final special assessment costs. 899 
 900 
On voice vote, motion carried. 901 
 902 
Item 7 – Review and consideration of a request from the Town of Onalaska for storm sewer 903 
connection along Kristy Lane to Lawrence Place 904 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
23 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 905 
Jarrod noted copies of an email from Lukasz Lyzwa of General Engineering, which serves as the 906 
Town of Onalaska’s engineer, have been included in board members’ packets.  General 907 
Engineering is requesting the connection of a storm sewer from Lawrence Place to Kristy Lane.  908 
Board members’ packets also include copies of a map showing the drainage area for the 909 
Lawrence Place storm sewer running to Kristy Lane.  Jarrod noted a number of the parcels 910 
shaded blue on the map are located in the Town of Onalaska, and also that five or six parcels in 911 
that area that drain from the City of Onalaska into the area.  Jarrod said he has worked with City 912 
Attorney Amanda Jackson on a possible agreement that would allow installation of the storm 913 
sewer, and he told board members that while the storm sewer was sized for this connection, it 914 
was not installed at the time Kristy Lane was developed.  The development agreement includes a 915 
proposal by the City of Onalaska for the Town of Onalaska to install the storm sewer and pay out 916 
the installation costs, to which the township has verbally agreed.  The City of Onalaska also is 917 
proposing that the Town of Onalaska pay an ERU charge of 19 ERU units at the city’s ERU cost 918 
per year.  Jarrod told board members this would drain at a low-spot area with which the township 919 
was experiencing difficulties.  Jarrod also said this would be a connection to the city’s storm 920 
sewer system by the township. 921 
 922 
Ald. Wulf asked Jarrod if the board is approving the storm sewer installation and maintenance 923 
agreement for Lawrence Place, a copy of which has been included in board members’ packets. 924 
 925 
Jarrod said yes. 926 
 927 
Motion by Ald. Wulf, second by Jarrod, to approve the Storm Sewer and Maintenance 928 
Agreement for Lawrence Place. 929 
 930 
Jarrod described this as being a “special, unique situation” in which the city is attempting to 931 
work with the township on an isolated area that was engineered by the city to accept this water.  932 
However, Jarrod also said the agreement in no way binds the city to further areas in which this 933 
action would need to be taken.  Jarrod described this as being a solution to a small area of a 934 
problem. 935 
 936 
Ald. K. Smith asked if there will be any cost to the city. 937 
 938 
Jarrod said the city will gain revenue from the ERU charges toward its Storm Water Utility. 939 
 940 
Fred inquired about the cost of the project. 941 
 942 
Jarrod told Fred it has not yet been designed and said he does not know the estimated cost.  943 
However, Jarrod also told Fred he would estimate the cost of installing the storm sewer to be 944 
approximately $25,000. 945 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
24 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 946 
Fred inquired about the annual cost of 19 ERUs. 947 
 948 
Jarrod said approximately $1,500. 949 
 950 
Fred said he will vote no, telling board members he would be open to supporting the agreement 951 
if it contained language stating annexation will occur in three to five years.  Fred added he feels 952 
uncomfortable with the way the agreement has been written. 953 
 954 
Ald. Wulf asked who had written the agreement. 955 
 956 
Jarrod said Amanda had written it. 957 
 958 
City Administrator Rindfleisch said he had spoken with both Fred and Jarrod regarding this issue 959 
and told board members he believes it comes down to a policy decision.  City Administrator 960 
Rindfleisch said he believes the question is if the city should provide city urban services to areas 961 
not located in the city – which, he noted, runs contrary to why the city seeks annexations.  City 962 
Administrator Rindfleisch asked if there is any incentive for properties to become annexed in the 963 
future if the city provides them those services, stating he believes there is credence to this 964 
concern.  City Administrator Rindfleisch noted some of the water going to the basin located in 965 
the township is city water, and the city is collecting township water on Abbey Road.  City 966 
Administrator Rindfleisch said this agreement means the city could work with the township, and 967 
he reiterated he believes this is a policy decision on which the board must make a decision. 968 
 969 
Ald. Wulf asked if she is allowed to vote against the motion she had made. 970 
 971 
Ald. K. Smith told Ald. Wulf she believes she is able to do so. 972 
 973 
Jarod Benson 974 
W6643 Lawrence Place 975 
Onalaska 976 
 977 
Jarod, a City of Onalaska Firefighter/EMT, told board members he must cross “a lake” to reach 978 
his property and noted that had not been disclosed to him when he purchased the property.  Jarod 979 
told board members the situation has gotten progressively worse over the last three years, and he 980 
said he has installed a new septic system and a new wellhead.  Jarod told board members the area 981 
in question is a large bowl that collects a significant amount of water, and he noted a nearby 982 
driveway erodes the hillside when there is excess water.  Jarod also said a significant amount of 983 
water runs into his street when the irrigation system at a nearby apartment complex is activated.  984 
Jarod said his wife is unable to drive her car on the street when there is excess water, and he 985 
would be unable to respond to a call in a timely fashion due to the situation.  Jarod said, “I know 986 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
25 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

with the properties that are still there, as far as annexation, are already pretty much built up.  987 
Even on the back side of the duplexes from Schnick [Road], I believe they’re non-developable 988 
[and] you couldn’t separate them.  In talking with an owner who has a shed back there, he said 989 
he’s not able to build anything there anymore.  The way I see it, if the town is paying the bill and 990 
putting it in, maybe when we get to the discussion in 20 years or so, if that whole area goes, that 991 
infrastructure is already in there and it’s not on your dime.  Plus, in the meantime you’re 992 
collecting money from the ERU units as well.” 993 
 994 
On roll call vote:  Mayor Joe Chilsen – nay, Ald. Diane Wulf – abstain, City Engineer Jarrod 995 
Holter – aye, Financial Services Director/Treasurer Fred Buehler – nay, Ald. Kim Smith – aye.  996 
Motion fails on a 2-2 tie, with one abstention. 997 
 998 
Ald. Wulf told board members she is very familiar with Kristy Lane as it is located within the 999 
Second District, which she serves, and she said she wishes to have more background and visit the 1000 
site again because she is not comfortable stating a position at this time.  Ald. Wulf told board 1001 
members she will have a position by the November 12 Common Council meeting, and she asked 1002 
if the Council may address this item. 1003 
 1004 
City Administrator Rindfleisch said the board is not making a recommendation to the Council 1005 
because the motion had failed. 1006 
 1007 
Mayor Chilsen said the item should have been forwarded to the Council with no 1008 
recommendation, but he also said Ald. Wulf now may bring forward a new motion. 1009 
 1010 
Motion by Ald. Wulf, second by Mayor Chilsen, to place Item 7 – Review and consideration of a 1011 
request from the Town of Onalaska for storm sewer connection along Kristy Lane to Lawrence 1012 
Place – on the Non-Consent Agenda with no recommendation for the November 12 Common 1013 
Council meeting. 1014 
 1015 
Ald. Wulf said she believes it will be fairer for the entire Council to provide input on this item. 1016 
 1017 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1018 
 1019 
Item 8 – Review and consideration of chemical treatment at Well #8 well column and 1020 
associated final project costs 1021 
 1022 
Jarrod said board members’ packets include copies of the original quote ($29,530) for the work, 1023 
as well as copies of the invoice from Municipal Well & Pump, the city’s well contractor, which 1024 
performed the original work.  Jarrod said Municipal Well & Pump realized it needed more 1025 
chemical after performing the first batch of treatments.  Jarrod further explained Municipal Well 1026 
& Pump could not lower the pH levels to where they needed to be, nor could it keep the chlorine 1027 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
26 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

residual high enough.  As a result, Municipal Well & Pump needed to do three treatments, and 1028 
the total cost for those treatments was $56,550.  Jarrod said staff believed it was prudent to finish 1029 
the treatments once they had started, and he also noted a new sample was taken and sent to 1030 
Andrew Jacque of Water Quality Investigations, LLC.  Jarrod said a new analysis report will be 1031 
arriving, but the interim report stated the treatment had significantly loosened biofilm.  Jarrod 1032 
said further tests will be conducted at the well, and he noted Well No. 8 has been put back into 1033 
service.  Jarrod also noted the funding source is the Water Utility Operating Budget for 1034 
Contractual Services. 1035 
 1036 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Wulf, to approve the chemical treatment at Well #8 well 1037 
column at a final cost of $56,550. 1038 
 1039 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1040 
 1041 
Item 9 – Review and consideration of La Crosse County Solid Waste Department landfill 1042 
expansion, including Resolution 38-2019 1043 
 1044 
Jarrod noted the last siting agreement occurred in 2005, and he also noted copies of a letter from 1045 
Jadd Stilwell, La Crosse County Solid Waste Director, were included in board members’ 1046 
packets.  The letter states La Crosse County will be expanding the landfill, and Jarrod said it is 1047 
necessary to pass a resolution to be part of the siting process.  Doing so will give the City of 1048 
Onalaska rights as a municipality.  Jarrod said the landfill has been a good partner in working 1049 
with noise, hours, and litter, and he noted the landfill performs landscaping for the city.  Jarrod 1050 
said he does not believe there will be many changes to the siting agreement; however, he also 1051 
said he believes the City of Onalaska should state it wishes to once again be part of the siting 1052 
agreement.  Jarrod also noted the resolution appoints Ald. Kim Smith, Ald. Tom Smith, former 1053 
First District Alderperson Jim Binash, and Jeff Moorhouse as the City of Onalaska’s 1054 
representatives on the negotiating committee. 1055 
 1056 
Ald. Wulf asked how the four representatives were chosen. 1057 
 1058 
Jarrod said Jeff Moorhouse had served on the previous siting committee in 2005.  Jarrod also 1059 
said up to two elected officials may be appointed, and that staff believed Jim Binash would be a 1060 
good representative due to his previous service to the city as an alderperson. 1061 
 1062 
Ald. Wulf asked if all four individuals have agreed to serve. 1063 
 1064 
Jarrod said Jeff and Jim have agreed to serve, and he told Ald. Wulf the Council representatives 1065 
may be amended. 1066 
 1067 
Ald. Wulf noted each member appointed to the local committee must file a Statement of 1068 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
27 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

Economic Interest and said she assumes it would confirm they do not have a financial interest. 1069 
 1070 
Jarrod said that while Jeff’s firm has performed work at the landfill in the past, it is not of a 1071 
substantial economic benefit. 1072 
 1073 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Wulf, to approve Resolution 38-2019. 1074 
 1075 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1076 
 1077 
Item 10 – Review and consideration of miscellaneous professional engineering services by 1078 
Strand Associates 1079 
 1080 
Jarrod noted the previous contract ran for four years before all the funds had been expended, and 1081 
he said this is on an on-call, as-needed basis.  Staff is proposing a not-to-exceed amount of 1082 
$8,000.  The funding source would be the utility that was utilizing the work. 1083 
 1084 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Wulf, to approve the miscellaneous professional engineering 1085 
services by Strand Associates in an amount not to exceed $8,000. 1086 
 1087 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1088 
 1089 
Item 11 – Review and consideration of letter to tree contractors regarding City-owned 1090 
boulevard trees 1091 
 1092 
Jarrod said there have been issues with contractors removing city boulevard trees, and he told 1093 
board members Planning Technician Zach Peterson had written a letter that will be sent to 1094 
contractors. 1095 
 1096 
Ald. Wulf referred to a recent incident in which a homeowner had removed trees and noted there 1097 
had been discussion about writing this letter and also including information in citizens’ water 1098 
bills. 1099 
 1100 
Jarrod said he thought information had been included in the water bills. 1101 
 1102 
Ald. Wulf asked if it would be more beneficial to include information in the April 2020 water 1103 
bills. 1104 
 1105 
Fred said it would be more beneficial to include information with the April 2020 water bills as 1106 
there will be information regarding the 2020 Census included in the January 2020 water bills. 1107 
 1108 
Ald. Wulf asked that the letter be edited to include a linking verb in the last sentence of the 1109 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
28 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

second paragraph. 1110 
 1111 
Ald. K. Smith asked if Amanda had reviewed the letter. 1112 
 1113 
Jarrod said he will ask Amanda to review it, adding that he had discussed the letter with her. 1114 
 1115 
Ald. K. Smith noted this item is for information only and said there is an understanding Amanda 1116 
will provide a final review before the letter is sent. 1117 
 1118 
Item 12 – Review and consideration of 2019 Cured in Place Pipe (CIPP) Project bid 1119 
 1120 
Jarrod said he had received three bids earlier Tuesday for this project, which would involve slip-1121 
lining the city’s sanitary sewers.  Jarrod said staff recommends approval of Visu-Sewer, Inc. for 1122 
a base bid of $428,875, along with Bid Alternate No. 1 (8-inch pipe) at a cost of $74,250.  The 1123 
total bid would be $503,125.  Jarrod noted $550,000 had been budgeted for this item in the 2019 1124 
CIB. 1125 
 1126 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Wulf, to award the 2019 Cured in Place Pipe (CIPP) Project 1127 
bid to Visu-Sewer, Inc. in the amount of $503,125, including a base bid of $428,875 and Bid 1128 
Alternate No. 1 at a cost of $74,250. 1129 
 1130 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1131 
 1132 
Item 13 – Review and consideration of Change Order #1 for 2019 Pavement Project 1133 
 1134 
Jarrod noted the description of Change Order No. 1 includes the areas of Green Street, Hickory 1135 
Street, 10th Avenue North, Placid Court, and La Crosse Street.  This is the change order for the 1136 
area that did not have any base aggregate rock underneath the street.  New gravel road base was 1137 
installed using the line items for crushed aggregate based course, and excavation below 1138 
subgrade.  Jarrod said the contractor, Mathy Construction, had performed the duties at the base 1139 
price that was within the bid.  The total cost is $86,159.30.  That total increases the contract by 1140 
that amount.  Jarrod said the city will be close to the original contract price and noted there were 1141 
other savings within the project. 1142 
 1143 
Motion by Ald. Wulf, second by Jarrod, to approve Change Order #1 for 2019 Pavement Project 1144 
in the amount of $86,159.30. 1145 
 1146 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1147 
 1148 
Item 14 – Review and consideration of snow removal on sidewalks with no boulevard 1149 
 1150 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
29 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

Ald. K. Smith noted this item has come forward due to a complaint by a citizen. 1151 
 1152 
Jarrod referred to a map showing 12th Avenue South and Wilson Street, and he noted Ordinance 1153 
6-2-8 (“Snow and Ice Removal”) states an abutting property owner is required to remove snow 1154 
from the abutting sidewalk.  Jarrod said the location in question has a through lane, a bicycle 1155 
lane, and a right-turn lane, and he noted the snow is placed on the sidewalk when the street is 1156 
plowed.  There is no boulevard at this location; the property in question (1204 Wilson Street) is 1157 
located close to the right-of-way; and there is a three-foot tall retaining wall.  Jarrod 1158 
acknowledged this is a difficult area of the city in terms of where to put snow, and he told board 1159 
members the homeowner has contacted Public Works staff multiple times with complaints 1160 
regarding snow.  Jarrod said the homeowner also had contacted the elected officials and 1161 
expressed his concerns.  Jarrod noted there are similar areas in the city, and he said he does not 1162 
have an answer as to how to address the situation as there is nowhere to put the snow. 1163 
 1164 
Ald. K. Smith told board members she had visited the location and said she sympathizes with the 1165 
homeowner as she realizes there will be a significant amount of snowfall this winter.  Ald. K. 1166 
Smith asked how often staff picks up extra snow when it is building up. 1167 
 1168 
Jarrod said staff removes excess snow as needed and told Ald. K. Smith staff typically will 1169 
perform snow removal in the downtown area more frequently due to parking.  Jarrod said this 1170 
location is on the snow removal list, but he also noted all-city snow removal operations involve 1171 
two 12-hour shifts over two days.  The cost of utilizing dumpster trucks to remove snow is 1172 
$3,000.  Jarrod said this location could be added to the list of higher service locations, and he 1173 
noted the property owner has expressed frustration over the fact the snow that is placed on his 1174 
sidewalk freezes.  Thus, the property owner cannot remove the ice and snow once it freezes.  1175 
Jarrod said staff could remove the snow, but the property owner still would have to deal with the 1176 
snow once it freezes. 1177 
 1178 
Ald. K. Smith said the sidewalk along 12th Avenue South is frequently utilized as it is located 1179 
between Onalaska High School and Onalaska Luther High School.  Ald. K. Smith also noted 1180 
there are many locations within the city where there are minimal boulevards and said the city 1181 
would be placed in an unsustainable situation if staff attempted to provide extra service to this 1182 
location. 1183 
 1184 
Jarrod said it is a policy decision that would have larger implications if the level of service was 1185 
changed.  Jarrod also said the city will continue to follow the current ordinance. 1186 
 1187 
Item 15 – Review and consideration of Sustainable La Crosse Commission report 1188 
 1189 
Ald. K. Smith noted board members’ packets include an Executive Order Relating to Clean 1190 
Energy signed by Wisconsin Governor Tony Evers.  Ald. K. Smith also noted the City of La 1191 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
30 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

Crosse had passed a similar resolution, and La Crosse County has drafted a resolution that is 1192 
being reviewed by its committees.  Ald. K. Smith said she believes the City of Onalaska’s 1193 
neighbors are attempting to develop ways that they may measure their progress toward becoming 1194 
carbon-neutral.  Ald. K. Smith noted many of the larger power companies are transitioning to 1195 
more sustainable resources, and he she also noted the City of Onalaska also is taking action.  1196 
Ald. K. Smith said the city must keep in mind that all new construction should be as energy 1197 
efficient as possible. 1198 
 1199 
Jarrod said the city had attempted to incorporate sustainable options when the new Public Works 1200 
Facility was constructed, and staff attempts to examine those in a cost benefit ratio that will 1201 
benefit the city. 1202 
 1203 
Item 16 – Pay Estimates:  Strand Associates, Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc., Mathy 1204 
Construction, Gerke Excavating, Davy Engineering, MSA Professional Services, Olympic 1205 
Builders, HSR Associates, All-American Lumber, Municipal Well and Pump, Fahrner 1206 
Asphalt Sealers, Mississippi Valley Archaeological Center, and any other 1207 
contractor/developer  1208 
 1209 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 1210 
MONTHLY ESTIMATES 1211 

 1212 
November 5, 2019 1213 

 1214 
    Original 1215 
    Contract   Change   Paid to  Due this 1216 
Contractor   Amount   Orders   Date   Estimate 1217 
 1218 
1.  SEH INC. 1219 
     Green Coulee Reservoir 1220 
     Design 1221 
     Estimate #9    $   25,000.00  $     -      $   19,690.71 $   1,511.22 1222 
 1223 
2.  DAVY ENGINEERING 1224 
     French Rd. Booster Station/Crestwood Ln. 1225 
     Design 1226 
     Estimate #13    $   126,490.00$     76,010.00      $   217,857.38 $   454.79 1227 
 1228 
3.  GERKE EXCAVATING, INC. 1229 
     Abbey Road Project 1230 
     Construction 1231 
     Estimate #7    $   1,536,651.19 $     -      $   1,466,269.81 $   28,062.63 1232 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
31 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 1233 
4.  OLYMPIC BUILDERS GENERAL CONTRACTORS 1234 
     6th & Quincy Pumping Station 1235 
     Construction 1236 
     Estimate #7    $   989,678.00 $     -      $   462,256.70 $   243,353.90 1237 
 1238 
5.  STRAND ASSOCIATES INC. 1239 
     6th & Quincy Lift Station 1240 
     Construction 1241 
     Estimate #6    $   33,000.00  $     -      $   26,692.06 $   1,484.66 1242 
 1243 
6.  MATHY CONSTRUCTION 1244 
     2019 Pavement Project 1245 
     Construction 1246 
     Estimate #5    $   1,082,820.45 $     -      $   973,804.44 $ 63,978.31 1247 
 1248 
7.  STRAND ASSOCIATES 1249 
     Court St. Lift Station 1250 
     Construction 1251 
     Estimate #3   $   24,300.00  $     -      $   4,390.57 $   418.75 1252 
 1253 
8.  GERKE EXCAVATING INC. 1254 
     2019 Utility Project 1255 
     Construction 1256 
     Estimate #4    $   1,287,302.00 $     -      $   609,906.37       $   175,372.73 1257 
 1258 
9.  ALL-AMERICAN LUMBER INC. 1259 
     Public Works Facility Addition 1260 
     Construction 1261 
     Estimate #3    $   1,155,183.00 $     -      $   225,163.49 $   259,626.24 1262 
 1263 
10.  OLYMPIC BUILDERS GENERAL CONTRACTORS 1264 
     Crestwood Booster Station 1265 
     Construction 1266 
     Estimate #2    $   974,846.00 $     -      $   78,251.50 $   67,340.75 1267 
 1268 
11.  HSR ASSOCIATES 1269 
     PWF Addition 1270 
     Design 1271 
     Estimate #5    $   81,500.00  $     -      $   71,090.00 $   1,630.00 1272 
 1273 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
32 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

12.  STRAND ASSOCIATES 1274 
     General Engineering 1275 
     Design 1276 
     Estimate #1    $   1,000.00  $     -      $   -   $   787.83 1277 
 1278 
13.  STRAND ASSOCIATES 1279 
     Well #9 Chlorine Addition 1280 
     Design 1281 
     Estimate #1    $   16,300.00  $     -      $   -   $   1,605.07 1282 
 1283 
14.  MISSISSIPPI VALLEY ARCHAEOLOGICAL CTR. 1284 
     Irvin Street 1285 
     Construction 1286 
     Estimate #1    $   3,000.00  $     -      $   -   $   2,688.18 1287 
 1288 
15.  MUNICIPAL WELL & PUMP 1289 
     Well #8 Rehab 1290 
     Construction 1291 
     Estimate #1    $   29,530.00  $     -      $   -   $   56,550.00 1292 
 1293 
16.  SEH INC. 1294 
     Abbey Road 1295 
     Construction 1296 
     Estimate #6    $   34,600.00  $     -      $   26,371.49 $   1,064.47 1297 
 1298 
17.  SEH INC. 1299 
     General Engineering 1300 
     East Avenue & Watermodeling 1301 
     Design 1302 
     Estimate #1    $   5,000.00  $     -      $   -   $   1,801.22 1303 
 1304 
18.  GERKE EXCAVATING 1305 
     Court St. Lift Station 1306 
     Construction 1307 
     Estimate #1    $   394,000.00 $     -      $   -   $   79,099.28 1308 
 1309 
19.  FAHRNER ASPHALT SYSTEMS 1310 
     Flexpatch City Streets 1311 
     Construction 1312 
     Estimate #1   $   97,800.00  $     -      $   -   $   98,851.35 1313 
 1314 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
33 

Reviewed 11/7/19 by Jarrod Holter 
 

Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Wulf, to approve the 19 pay estimates listed on a document 1315 
dated November 5, 2019. 1316 
 1317 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1318 
 1319 
Adjournment  1320 
 1321 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Fred, to adjourn at 9:05 p.m. 1322 
 1323 
On voice vote, motion carried. 1324 
 1325 
 1326 
Recorded by: 1327 
 1328 
Kirk Bey 1329 


